[image: image1.jpg];@m& Alameda County
st SUSTAINABILITY

Locel Action Gishel Mnosct



[image: image2.png]


WILLIE A. HOPKINS, JR., Director

[image: image3.wmf]
County of Alameda, General Services Agency – Purchasing

RFP No. 900977, Addendum No. 2

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901499
for

Delinquency Prevention Network
Summary of Q&A Submitted 
Networking/Bidders Conferences were held on October 24, 2017 and October 25, 2017

	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa_app/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/contractopportunities.jsp


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Questions from the Bidders Conferences and Written Questions.
Q1) Is there a page limit for bidders’ proposals?
A1) There is no page limit for proposals.  The County expects Bidders to provide a concise and thorough bid response.
Q2) Can the County provide specific information regarding the parameters for submitting proposals through the strategic sourcing portal (pdf, megabytes, attachments, etc.)?
A2) As noted on page 1 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet:

All pages of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet must be submitted through the Strategic Sourcing Supplier Portal as PDF attachment(s) in total with all required documents attached thereto; all information requested must be supplied; any pages of Exhibit A (or items therein) not applicable to the bidder must still be submitted as part of a complete bid response, with such pages or items clearly marked “N/A.”

In addition, the County provides the following:

· The County prefers bid responses to be uploaded/submitted in a single file PDF with optical character recognition (OCR);

· The maximum single file size that can be uploaded is 20 MB (megabytes).  If the PDF is near or greater than 20 MB, the County suggests that Bidders split the bid response into multiple files and name each file appropriately (e.g., Proposal Part 1, Proposal Part 2, etc.)

· The County strongly suggests that Bidders upload their bid responses at least 24-hours BEFORE the bid response deadline.  This will give Bidders additional time to trouble-shoot any issues that may arise. 

· After you “upload” your bid response file(s), the County suggests you “view” it to ensure that each file uploaded is complete.
· Once ready for submission, Bidders must hit the “Submit Bid” in order to complete submission.  This is true even if you have already submitted bid and want to modify or just view/review it (even if no changes are made).

Q3) Are bidders permitted to submit more than one bid as a prime?  If so, are bidders to submit separate bid responses or shall the response be written into one bid?
A3) As stated on page 36 of the RFP, Section U (SUBMITTAL OF BIDS), Item 5:

Only one bid response will be accepted from any one person, partnership, corporation, or other entity; however, several alternatives may be included in one response.  
If alternatives bid are submitted, Bidders do not have to submit separate bid responses or upload separate files.  Bidders are required, however, to ensure that alternatives for each appropriate required submittal is provided so that the County can evaluate and score each alternative accordingly.  
Q4) Can the County please clarify when a Bidder is required to subcontract 20% of the total contract/bid value to a Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) certified by Alameda County?  
A4) If a prime Bidder is not a Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) certified by Alameda County, then the Bidder must subcontract 20% of the contract/bid value to an Alameda County certified SLEB.  
Certain entities, including non-profit CBO’s and government entities, are exempt and not required to subcontract with a SLEB.  More information about the SLEB program, including a complete list of exempt entities, can be found online:  http://acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm
Q5) Which check box does SLEB certified Bidder check on the SLEB preference sheet?
A5) On page 3 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, an Alameda County certified SLEB should check the bottom box on Item 10 that states the following:

Bidder is a certified SLEB at the time of bid submittal and is requesting 5% bid preference; (Bidder must check the first box and provide its SLEB Certification Number in the SLEB PARTNERING INFORMATION SHEET). 

As indicated above, the SLEB certified Bidder must also complete the SLEB Partnering Information Sheet found on page 10 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet.
Q6) Can a vendor bid as a prime and also be named as a subcontractor on another vendor’s bid response?
A6) Yes.  Vendors can bid as a prime while also being named as a subcontractor on another vendor’s bid response or on multiple vendors’ bid responses.
Q7) What are the major areas that are different in this RFP compared to the RFP that was released in 2016 for Delinquency Prevention Network?
A7) The funds are allocated differently in this RFP, the zip codes will only be used for referrals from the Malabar House and youth can be referred to the city they live in or the city they go to school in; depending on what area of referral is most beneficial for the youth and their family.  Also, this is the first of two Delinquency Prevention RFPs to be distributed by the County.  A separate bid for additional services (including civic and social engagement, restorative justice, life skills, mentoring, and diversion) will be released following this RFP.

Q8) When will the second Delinquency Prevention RFP be released?
A8) Tentatively, the County expects to release the second Delinquency Prevention RFP between late Q4-2017 and early Q1-2018.  
Q9) Why has the funding for this RFP changed from the funding of the previously released RFP for Delinquency Prevention Network?
A9) The first RFP attempted to achieve equity throughout the system, regardless of how many youth were served in each Service Area.  The current funding distribution reflects the different number of youth served in each Service Area. 
Q10) How should the Budget Form be completed?
A10) The Budget Form has three columns (A, B, and C).  In Column A, the Bidder must indicate which Service Area(s)/Location(s) for which they are applying; in Column B, the Bidder must indicate how many youth they intend to service in each area/location; and in Column C, the Bidder must indicate the cost to service the number of youth indicated in Column B.
Bidders should use Table 1-A and Table 1-B for reference information (tables can be found on page 6 of the RFP).  In regards to Column B, the number of youth proposed to be serviced by the Bidder shall not exceed the last column of Table 1-A.  In regards to Column C, the cost proposed by the Bidder shall not exceed the last column of Table 1-B.
Q11) Is there a minimum number youth that must be served per fiscal year?
A11) There is no minimum number of youth that must be served per fiscal year.  However, Bidders must indicate on the Budget Form the number of youth they intend to serve as well as the cost to serve that number of youth.  For any bidders awarded a contract, the County will expect this number of youth to be served in order to receive the full funding allocation.  So while the County does not specify a number of youth that must be served in the RFP, once contract negotiations are completed, there will be a minimum of youth to be served based on the bidder’s proposal.

Regardless, as noted on the Budget Form (top paragraph): 
The cost quoted shall include all taxes and all other charges (including but not limited to travel expenses, meals, administrative costs, etc.), and is the annual cost the County will pay for the three-year term of any contract that is a result of this bid.  No minimum or maximum is guaranteed or implied. 
Q12) What is the definition of “youth served”?
A12) Youth served is the total unduplicated number of youth enrolled into a service. 
Q13) What is the definition of a Youth Service Center?
A13) A Youth Service Center (YSC) is an agency that provides case management, counseling, truancy, diversion services, and supports the Crisis Receiving Home (CRH).  More information on supporting the CRH can be found on page 13 of the RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 7.a.(3)(b). 
Q14) In order to bid on a particular Service Area, is the Bidder required to have a physical office address in that Service Area?  Or, for example, can a Bidder whose primary physical office is located in Union City (Service Area 10) bid on Service Area 6 using a subcontractor’s facility?
A14) As stated on page 7 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALFICATIONS), Item 2.a. & 2.b.:

2.
Bidder shall be a local vendor, based in Alameda County.  An Alameda County vendor is a firm or dealer:

a.
With fixed offices and having a street address within the County in the identified catchment area for at least six months prior to the issue date of this RFP; and

b.
Which holds a valid business license issued by the County or a city within the County.

In the example asked above, a Bidder whose primary physical office is located in Union City (assuming they can provide proof as specified in Section C, Item 2.a. & 2.b.) can bid on Service Area 6 as long as the Bidder can prove it has been providing services at a facility (i.e., Youth Service Center) in Service Area 6 for at least six months prior to the issue date of the RFP.  The Youth Service Center does not necessarily have to be owned by the Bidder or be its primary physical office; however, the Bidder must have been providing services at that Youth Service Center for at least six months prior to the issue date of the RFP.  If that Youth Service Center is owned by a subcontractor, then a lease agreement, MOU, or other documentation must be provided that satisfactorily proves the Bidder has been providing services at that facility for at least six months prior to the issue date of the RFP.
Q15) Page 6 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE AND BACKGROUND), Table 1-B indicates that zip code 94601 has been duplicated in Service Area 2 and Service Area 4.  Also, zip code 94546 has been duplicated in Service Area 5 and Service Area 8.  Therefore, how will these zip codes be split among the service providers?
A15) Zip Code 94601 is removed from Service Area 1 and will remain in Service Area 2.  Zip Code 94541 will remain in both Service Areas 5 and 8 and will depend on whether the youth’s home or school location is in an incorporated or unincorporated area. 

Q16) Page 6 of the RFP, Section B (SCOPE AND BACKGROUND), Table 1-B indicates that zip code 94541 is in Service Area 5 which services Castro Valley, San Lorenzo, unincorporated Hayward, unincorporated San Leandro.  This zip code is split between the City of Hayward and unincorporated Hayward.  Will this zip code be for youth living within the City of Hayward with zip code 94541 or for youth living in unincorporated Hayward?
A16) Zip Code 94541 will remain in both Service Areas 5 and 8 and will depend on whether the youth’s home or school location is in an incorporated or unincorporated area.  Service Area 5 will service youth living in unincorporated Hayward.
Q17) Will zip code 94541 be included in Service Area 8?
A17) Zip Code 94541 will remain in both Service Areas 5 and 8 and will depend on whether the youth’s home or school location is in an incorporated or unincorporated area. Service Area 5 will service youth living in unincorporated Hayward. 

Q18) Will zip code 94546 be moved from Service Area 8 to Service Area 5?
A18) Yes.
Q19) Regarding Table 1-B:  Estimated Funding for Youth Service Centers by Service Area (page 6 of the RFP), can the County please clarify and/or ensure that the Service Areas and their corresponding zip codes are accurate?
A19) Yes. However, the zip codes will only pertain to referrals made from the CRH.  All other referrals made can be made to the cities outlined in the Service Area by youths home or by the youth’s school. 

Q20) RFP No. 901499 does not align funding allocations with actual at-risk and system-involved youth (ARSIY) need.  Instead RFP No. 901499 aligns funding allocations with the number of ARSIY served in each service area during the FY 2014-16 time frame.  The number of ARSIY served is not a data-driven, evidence-based indicator of ARSIY need.  How will actual ARSIY need be determined based on current data sources?
A20) Looking at past years’ data is a data-driven and evidence based indicator.  Probation will continue to look at data provided by the Youth Service Centers. 

Q21) My organization, which is located in Service Area 4, serves some zip codes under the current contract that—in this RFP—are now included in Service Area 2 (i.e., 94610, 94611, 94612, and 94618).  Can these zip codes be shared between service areas?
A21) The zip codes will only pertain to referrals made from CRH.  All other referrals can be made to the cities outlined in the Service Area as determined the by youth’s home or by the youth’s school.
Q22) In past years, referrals for truancy have been distributed based on insurance status of the child, with Medi-Cal children referred exclusively to Lincoln Child Center regardless of the service area the child resides in.  In the new contract, will all referrals for a specific service area be given to that service area regardless of insurance status? 
A22) Youth will not be referred based on insurance status.  The youth will be referred based on the awarded provider for the Service Area. 

Q23) How many bidders will be awarded per service area?
A23) One bidder will be awarded per Service Area.
Q24) If a school submits a referral to the service provider in the school’s area, are Contractors permitted to accept that referral even though the student lives in a different service area? 
A24) Yes, a youth can be referred based on where they go to school. 

Q25) Some vendors provide services within the student’s school, will those students continue to be referred to the vendors at the school site or will they be referred to a Contractor within the student’s home zip code?
A25) Yes, the student can be referred to the contractor at the school site.
Q26) Page 7 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 3.a., states:
Family Counselors providing direct counseling services shall have at least a Master’s Degree in Social Work, Family Therapy, Psychology, Counseling, or a closely related human service field.  Master’s level intern shall be supervised by a licensed or licensed-eligible mental health professional.  Family Counselors shall have at least three years of family counseling experience.
Are interns in addition to family counselors required to have at least three years of family counseling experience?
A26) No.  Interns are not required to have at least three years of family counseling experience.

Q27) Page 7 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER QUALIFICATIONS), Item 3.b., states:
Case Managers shall have at least a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Work, Psychology, and Counseling or other human services area or equivalent experience.  Case Managers shall have at least one year of case management experience and shall provide case management supervision and training.
Are case managers required to provide case management supervision and training for one year or are case managers required to receive case management supervision and training for one year?
A27) This qualification has been revised as follows:
Case Managers shall have at least a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Work, Psychology, and Counseling or other human services area or equivalent experience.  Case Managers shall have at least one year of case management experience and shall receive case management supervision and training.

Q28) Page 10 of the RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 2 states: 
Contractor(s) shall provide services at the following Service Delivery Sites: Provider’s facility, client’s home, Probation offices, school and/or other sites that support the client and family engagement process.
Are bidders required to provide case management services or counseling services at the client’s home?
A28) It is an option to go to the client’s home based on the best interest and need of the youth and family being served.
Q29) Page 11 of the RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 5 states:
Contractors shall not use DPN funds to serve the same population of youth and services covered under another funding source.
Can the County clarify this statement?
A29) This statement is intended to prevent contractors from charging two funding sources for the same work.  As an example, if a needs assessment is conducted on a youth that costs $100, the Contractor cannot invoice the County for that $100 if the City of Fremont has also been invoiced for that $100.
Q30) Page 12 of Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet is the Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments form.  What would this form be used?
A30) Bidders should use this form to list any requests for clarifications, exceptions, and amendments—if any—to the RFP and associated Bid Documents.  As an example, on page 33 of the RFP, Section P (Award), Item 10, the County provides a hyperlink to boilerplate agreement language.  If a Bidder wants to take exception to any of the boilerplate language, such exception may be listed on this form.  
Please note, as indicated on the Exceptions, Clarifications, Amendments form:  The County is under no obligation to accept any exceptions and such exceptions may be a basis for bid disqualification.
Q31) Page 18 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES), Item 2.a., states:
Of those referred by the CRH, 100% will be connected to a case manager within two hours of referral.
Can the County clarify is this is in regards to the crisis response time?
A31) Yes, this in regards to response time for calls made to the provider from the CRH. 
NOTE:  This performance measure has been revised as follows:

Of those referred by the CRH, 100% will be connected to a counselor or case manager within two hours of referral.

Q32) Page 18 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES), Item 2.a., states:
Of those referred by the CRH, 100% will be connected to a case manager within two hours of referral.
Is it acceptable for a counselor to call within two hours of referral instead of a case manager (as case managers are typically not “on call”)?
A32) Yes, it is acceptable for a counselor or case manager to respond.
NOTE:  This performance measure has been revised as follows:

Of those referred by the CRH, 100% will be connected to a counselor or case manager within two hours of referral.

Q33) Page 18 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES), Item 2.b., states:
For SARB referrals, the number of responses given to the referring agency within 21 judicial days. 

Can the County clarify and provide additional information regarding this statement?
A33) This performance measure has been revised as follows:

For SARB referrals, 80% of responses are to be given to the referring agency within 21 judicial days.
Q34) Page 18 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES), Item 2.b., states:
For SARB referrals, the number of responses given to the referring agency within 21 judicial days.
Can the County define judicial days?
A34) Judicial days are weekdays, Monday through Friday, and exclusion of any major holidays. 
NOTE:  This performance measure has been revised as follows:

For SARB referrals, 80% of responses are to be given to the referring agency within 21 judicial days
Q35) Page 18 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES), Item 2.c., states:
80% of youth referred will be seen with the family within two weeks of referral.
Does this statement include every youth that is referred to the provider, or is it specific to Probation and Law Enforcement referrals?
A35) Yes, this statement includes every youth.
Q36) Page 19 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES), Item 2.g., states:
80% of the youth and families will participate in an assessment of their strengths and needs utilizing the Child and Adolescent Needs and Strengths (CANS) or similar tool within 30 days of referral.
Will all DPN Contractors be required to be trained in and utilize CANS?
A36) The CANS may not be the specific tool.  There will be one tool chosen by Probation; all providers will be trained on the tool and required to use the specific tool.

NOTE:  This performance measure has been revised as follows:

80% of the youth and families will participate in an assessment of their strengths and needs utilizing an evaluation tool to be determined by Probation, within 30 days of referral. 

Q37) Page 20 of the RFP, Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES), Item 3.i., states:
75% of youth will not be re-arrested while receiving services 20% of youth referred for truancy will experience improved school attendance.
Is this a standard benchmark, and how can bidders obtain this data to see how this benchmark was derived?
A37) NOTE:  This performance measure has been revised and split into the following two performance measures: 
75% of youth will not be re-arrested while receiving services. 

20% of youth referred for truancy will experience improved school attendance.

Probation will obtain both of these data measurements, based on the provider’s monthly report.
Q38) Can the County consider revising the reference requirement to require one current reference, one former reference, and one of reference of bidders’ choice?
A38) The reference requirement has been revised; Bidder are now required to provide three references of their choice.
Q39) Can an “other” section be added to the reference questionnaire to allow references the opportunity to add additional information that was not asked?
A39) There is already a question that allows reference providers to add additional information. 

Q40) Can a Bidder list employees of the Alameda County Probation Department as a reference?
A40) Yes.  Bidders can list an employee of Alameda County, including those of the Probation Department, as a reference.  If there are any conflicts surrounding an Alameda County employee that is named as a reference, the County (GSA-Procurement) will notify the Bidder and address the conflict appropriately.
All reference contacts named should be those of the primary contact or project manager who has working and/or day-to-day knowledge of the services provided.  
Q41) Can letters of recommendation be submitted in place of references?
A41) No.  Letters of recommendation will not be evaluated in lieu of references.
Q42) Can the County provide additional information regarding the “on call” coverage for the Crisis Receiving Home (CRH), as it appears there are more days that “on call” service is required as opposed to the previous RFP released? 
A42) There are less days that require holiday coverage for the CRH in this RFP. 
Q43) How will the new performance measures in this RFP be assessed as opposed to the previous RFP? 
A43) Probation has been working with Mobius Justice Technologies LLC to build a rich data platform that captures, anonymizes, cleans, and merges data from the Delinquency Prevention Network (DPN) and Juvenile Field Services.  This data platform will allow Probation to have:
· Immediate visualization of key metrics describing progress towards organizational goals;

· Partner performance analysis, including fiscal and client outcome assessments; and

· End-to-end, client-level reporting that is CJIS and HIPAA compliant, enabling previously unavailable data-driven insight into operational strengths, weaknesses, and opportunities to better match services to sought-after outcomes. 
Q44) Where should bidders address the performance measures within the bid response?
A44) Performance measures should be addressed under “Description of Proposed Services” and “Methodology.”  
NOTE:  The Description of Proposed Services section of the Bid Response Packet has been revised as follows:

Description of Proposed Services:  Bid response shall include a description of the terms and conditions of services to be provided during the contract term including response times.  If partnering with subcontractors(s), the prime Bidder shall identify the subcontractor(s), provide the subcontractor’s qualifications, and describe how they plan to work together.  Bidder(s) shall identify any existing agreements or MOUs between the bidder(s) and proposed subcontractor(s).  The Bidder must address how they will meet or exceed each requirement listed in Section D (GENERAL REQUIREMENTS), Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Section F (DELIVERABLES/REPORTS), and Section G (PERFORMANCE MEASURES).  The description must…
NOTE:  The Methodology section of the Bid Response Packet has been revised as follows:

(a) Bidders must describe how and why the services proposed by the Bidder (as described in the Description of Proposed Services) will best meet the County’s requirements, expectations, performance measures, and desired outcomes to best service the target population.

Q45) The number of free sessions (without pay) has been addressed in reference to crisis intervention/counseling services on page 11 of the RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 7.a.(1).  It appears this may be a parameter for assessment for ongoing services.  The number of sessions is not specified for Counseling, Crisis Receiving Home, Truancy Mediation, Case Management Services, or Diversion Services.  There appears to be a discrepancy between the number of sessions to be provided with the length of service (specifically for truancy mediation, which requires youth be maintained a minimum of one year).  Can the County provide clarification?
A45) The five sessions pertains to crisis intervention/counseling services; as stated on page 11 of the RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 7.a.(1):

Contractor(s) shall provide crisis intervention/counseling services to youth and their families.  When providing crisis intervention/counseling services, Contractor shall provide up to five sessions of family therapy at no cost to the client(s) in Alameda County, as needed for stabilization or coordination.  Contractors that also hold Early Periodic Screening Diagnosis and Treatment (EPSDT) contracts shall provide clients no more than three counseling and/or crisis intervention sessions under ACPD funding while determining Medi-Cal eligibility and a diagnosis that meets EPSDT criteria.

Alameda County Probation Department pays for Truancy Mediation, Diversion, and Case Management services until the youth and/or family is stabilized.  Services shall be provided as outlined for:

· the Crisis Receiving Home as described on pages 13-14 of the RFP, Section E, Item 7.a.(3)(b)(i);

· Truancy Mediation as described on page 14 of the RFP, Section E, Item 7.a.(3)(c)(iii);

· Case Management as described on page 14 of the RFP, Section E, Item 7.a.(3)(d); and

· Diversion Services as described on page 16 of the RFP, Section E, Item 7.a.(3)(e). 
The Contractor shall determine if the youth and/or family is eligible for Medi-Cal and if so, the Contractor shall bill Medi-Cal for billable services.  If youth and/or family is ineligible for Medi-Cal, the Contractor shall use their agency’s income based scale if no other funding is available. 

Q46) Is there a limit to the amount of services to be provided under diversion, counseling, or case management?
A46) There is no limit to the amount of services to be provided by the Contractor.  Bidders should explain in their bid response which services they will provide and what the services will include.  However, the Contractor should address the needs identified of the youth based on the assessment tool and provide services for stabilization and coordination.  Alameda County Probation Department pays for Truancy Mediation, Diversion, and Case Management until the youth and/or family is stabilized.
Q47) How does the RFP address the difference between the five free sessions and the one year contract with truancy?  Are contractors expected to charge the families after the five free sessions for truancy?  
A47) Contractors are expected to explain in their proposals how they will work with the youth/families to determine how the needs of the families can be met. 

Q48) If a youth uses all free five sessions, are Contractors permitted to use resources or funds from another contract to meet the needs of the youth?
A48) Yes.  Contractors are permitted to use resources or funds from another contract to meet the needs of the youth.  The County expects Contractors not to double bill the County or another agency for services provided. 
Q49) Will the MAYSI-2 Assessment tool be used until Probation finds a new tool for the Fiscal Year 2018-19 clients?
A49) Yes, the MAYSI will continue to be used until the new contracts are in place.
Q50) Can the County provide a list of the current DPN providers?
A50) Please see the table below:

	Service Area
	Provider

	1
	Alameda Family Services

	2
	Alternatives in Action

	3
	Berkeley Youth Alternatives

	4
	Carl B. Metoyer Center for Family Counseling

	5
	Eden Counseling Services

	6
	Girl's Incorporated of Alameda County

	7
	Family Service Counseling Center - City of Hayward

	8
	Union City Youth and Family Services

	9
	Family Service Counseling City of Fremont

	10
	City of Livermore - Horizons
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